The Rental Properties
Of
Mount Holyoke College
212 Northampton Road
Amherst, MA 01002
(413) 542-8506
Fax: (413) 542-8507

rhd@amherst.edu

www.amherst.edu/~rhd



Resident Handbook

Updated 2022

# **Table Of Contents**

STATEMENT ON COLLEGE HOUSING	4
ELIGIBILITY	4
PROCEDURES	5
HOUSING APPLICATION FORMS	5
ASSIGNMENT PERIOD	5
PRIORITY ORDER	5
TIE BREAKING	5
ASSIGNMENT PRACTICES	6
GENERAL OCCUPANCY INFORMATION	6
TYPES OF FACILITIES	6
FURNISHINGS AND EQUIPMENT	6
RENT AND UTILITY PAYMENTS	6
SUBLETTING AND RESPONSIBILITIES	6
INSURANCE	7
UTILITIES	7
FUEL	8
POLICE AND FIRE PROTECTION	8
POLICE	8
FIRE	8
MAINTENANCE SERVICES	8
KEYS	9
TRASH	9
PARKING	9
STORAGE	9
BASEMENTS	9
PETS	10
BUILDING/MAINTENANCE INFORMATION	10
EXTERMINATION	10
ROUTINE REPAIRS AND SERVICE	10
EMERGENCY SERVICE & LOCKOUTS	10
ACCESS	10
MAJOR REPAIRS AND RENOVATION	10

PAINTING AND REDECORATING	11
GROUNDS	11
SPECIAL WINTER INFORMATION	11
OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION	12
BASEMENT/FLOODING	12
TENANT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREMISES	12
COLLEGE RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREMISES	13
SAFETY RECOMMENDATIONS	13
VACATING COLLEGE RESIDENCE	14
MOVING DATE	14
UTILITIES	14
CLEANING - FINAL CHECK LIST	14
INSPECTION	14

# STATEMENT ON MOUNT HOLYOKE COLLEGE HOUSING

The College owns a number of apartments and houses that are primarily available for rental to non-tenured faculty members and, occasionally, to new faculty who arrive with tenure and certain administrative employees of the College. Housing policies and practices have been developed in cooperation with the Faculty Conference Committee and are reviewed periodically by the Committee. The College housing program is administered by the Rental Property Department, 212 Northampton Road, Amherst, MA 01002.

The College recognizes that there are mutual benefits to be served if faculty live near the center of campus life; consequently, it has acquired properties and maintains them in order to accommodate new faculty moving to South Hadley. It should be noted, however, that housing is the individual's and not the College's responsibility. The Rental Property Department does not assume the responsibility of finding rental units for all new appointees. Therefore, housing is not guaranteed.

To complement the College housing program, a mortgage loan plan is available to full-time members of the faculty with tenure-track, tenured, or senior lecturer appointments and to certain administrative employees. The plan is subject to conditions outlined in the "Handbook of Faculty Legislation and Related Information." This handbook can be obtained by contacting the Dean of Faculty's Office.

### **ELIGIBILITY**

Regular full-time and part-time faculty members with the rank of Professor, Associate Professor, Assistant Professor, or Instructor are eligible for College-owned rental housing and have renewal privileges while in non-tenured status (See section on Procedures for priority guidelines).

Lecturers and visiting faculty may be eligible for rental housing, depending on the recommendation of the President or the Dean of Faculty, who will also classify the appointee's rank for housing purposes (See section on Procedures for priority guidelines).

Professional librarians who have faculty status in accordance with College regulations are eligible for rental housing.

Faculty members are given priority for rental housing. However, to the extent that housing is available, eligibility for rental housing may be extended to staff members at the time of their initial hire as a means of facilitating their relocation to this area. Eligibility for housing for staff will be determined on a case-by-case basis in consultation with the senior administrative officer of the division and the Human Resources Department. Since rental housing for staff is not intended to be a long-term housing solution, but is intended to aid in a staff member's transition and relocation upon hire, staff may remain in housing for a maximum of two years, or to June 30 following the fiscal year in which they take up residence in College housing, whichever is less.

A faculty member who owns a house in the general vicinity of the College is not eligible for rental housing, although exceptions may be made for transitional situations.

Policy does not permit moving from one unit to another unit, but in individual cases exceptions have been made if a family has outgrown the unit originally assigned. If in any fiscal year, after all appointments have been made, College housing units are still available, other non-tenured faculty and staff not residing in College housing may apply for a short-term lease through June 30 of that fiscal year.

Any remaining units not rented to College personnel may then be offered to individuals not connected with the College for a short-term lease through June 30 of that fiscal year.

A faculty member who receives tenure may remain in College housing for a maximum period of one additional academic year beyond that in which the tenure decision was made. New faculty who arrive with tenure and professional librarians may remain in College housing for a maximum period of three years.

# **PROCEDURES**

# **HOUSING APPLICATION FORMS**

All new appointees interested and eligible for College housing who have signed their employment contracts with the Dean of Faculty's Office should reach out to the Rental Housing Department via email at <a href="RHD@amherst.edu">RHD@amherst.edu</a>. Upon receipt of the inquiry for housing, the Rental Housing Department will send a link for the application to be completed by the appointee.

# **ASSIGNMENT PERIOD**

Applications received by the Rental Property Department by May 15 will be put in priority order for assignments. Applications received after May 15 will be dealt with on a first-come, first-served basis. Cooperation between the parties who are moving out and moving in is helpful and appreciated.

Due to strong demand for rental housing, and the tight assignment schedule, applicants are given 3 days to make a unit selection; if they do not choose a unit during that period, the next person on the list will be invited to make a selection. While applicants who do not comply with the 3-day limit do not lose their option to choose a unit at a later date, they may have a smaller selection of available units.

# **PRIORITY ORDER**

Application forms received by the Rental Property Department before May 15 will be placed in priority order as follows:

1. Academic rank at the time of appointment is considered in descending order as follows:

Professor

**Associate Professor** 

**Assistant Professor** 

Instructor

Regular part-time faculty members who file jointly for housing will be considered on a combined basis of one full-time faculty member. The appointee with the highest rank will be considered for priority purposes.

- 2. The President will establish the rank of administrators for priority purposes.
- 3. Additional consideration will be given for the number of dependents in a family. Dependents are defined as those so qualified according to the rules of the Internal Revenue Service and can include dependent parents or other close relatives that live with the appointees.

#### **TIE BREAKING**

Should situations arise where there is a perception of disagreement between or amongst applicants for housing or for requests to move, the criteria for resolution of the issue(s) will be:

- 1. The appointee with the higher rank will be given preference.
- 2. The appointee with longest total service at the College, if applicable, will be given preference.
- 3. The Dean of Faculty will adjudicate.

# **ASSIGNMENT PRACTICES**

In accordance with the priority list, the Rental Property Department will offer College housing to eligible appointees. The applicant will in turn notify the Rental Property Department of his or her interest, if any, and assignments will then be made.

New tenants are required to sign a lease agreement in duplicate before occupancy. The terms of the lease are important and binding and should be read carefully and in their entirety.

# **GENERAL OCCUPANCY INFORMATION**

# **TYPES OF FACILITIES**

Several types of College residences are available for occupancy as follows:

	No. Bldgs.	No. Units
Individual houses Two-family	14 4	14 8
houses	4	0
Multiple-family houses	5	19
Total	23	41

# **FURNISHINGS AND EQUIPMENT**

All College housing is rented without furnishings. (The College does not own any furnished units.) Some multiple-family apartment units have app-based washer/dryer units available, and some buildings are equipped with washer/dryer connections. The College provides refrigerators and ranges in all the units. The College does not supply, nor are the tenants permitted to install any dishwashers in any of the units. The Rental Housing Department will not be responsible for repair or replacement of appliances that are not owned by the College. Prospective tenants should check to see if utility hook ups are available for their personal appliances before accepting an offered unit. The College does not supply air conditioning units in any of the rental units. Tenants are responsible for for installation of their own air conditioning and the Rental Housing Department does not install tenants air conditioning units.

# **RENT AND UTILITY PAYMENTS**

Monthly rental payments for College housing, which includes heat in some units, are due on the fifteenth day of each month and are made by payroll deduction. In the event that a tenant is not on the College payroll, the College will bill the tenant each month.

#### **SUBLETTING AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

A tenant wishing to sublet his or her apartment or house must first obtain written permission from the Rental Property Department. The tenant may charge the subtenant a modest amount of additional rent (not more than 10%) for the use of furnishings and appliances. The College considers the signer of the lease (the tenant) to be the person responsible for the rent and all other terms of the lease.

Occupants wishing to sublet are encouraged to give consideration first to other members of the faculty, and then to other members of the College community. Once someone has agreed to sublet the apartment, both the tenant and the subletter will sign a sublease agreement before the subtenant takes occupancy. These forms are available from the Rental Property Department.

College housing is intended for use by Mount Holyoke College faculty and administrative personnel and may not be sublet to students during the academic year. However, it is permissible to sublet to students during the summer months with the written approval of the other tenants in the building and the Rental Property Department. The sublet of individual rooms or sections of apartments or houses is restricted by town regulations and the College.

# **INSURANCE**

Tenants of College-owned housing are responsible for any loss or damage that they cause to the property. The College has property insurance on College-owned housing, but that coverage protects only the College's interest in the property (it protects neither the tenant nor the tenant's personal property, nor does it cover any of the tenant's liability). If, for example, a tenant accidentally caused a fire that heavily damaged a College-owned rental house, the College's property insurance would reimburse the College for the loss. However, the College's insurance company has the right to pursue the tenant for any claim that it paid.

In order to avoid placing its tenants in such a position, the College requires each tenant to carry Renter's Insurance with at least \$100,000 personal liability coverage. Renter's Insurance protects the tenant if someone claims that he or she accidentally damaged another's property or caused bodily injury.

Each tenant must provide a certificate of insurance from his or her insurance agent demonstrating current coverage in the amount shown above as a minimum within 10 days of the execution of their lease with the College (and annually upon any renewal or extension of lease). It is strongly recommended, however, that each tenant purchase this insurance prior to his or her arrival to South Hadley. A policy with these limits plus \$12,000.00 of personal property coverage (with a \$250.00 deductible) will cost approximately \$150.00 per year. There are several insurance agents who can easily write this insurance.

# **UTILITIES**

Tenants must apply directly to the utility companies for electrical, cable, gas and telephone service. It generally takes several days from the time of application to when service actually begins. Utility companies may require a deposit prior to servicing your unit.

To apply for electrical service, each tenant must fill out and mail an application form to the South Hadley Electric Light Department, 85 Main Street, South Hadley, MA 01075 (413-536-1050). A deposit is required at the time of application. Mount Holyoke College has an arrangement with the South Hadley Electric Light Department whereby the electric service is not turned off and reconnected when tenants vacate and enter College housing. The College is billed for any electric usage during interim periods, and

the tenant is saved the substantial connect and disconnect fees ordinarily charged. It is the responsibility of the tenant to have the service put in the tenant's name as of the effective date of the lease and to arrange for the final meter reading at the expiration of the lease.

- Water service is provided and paid for by the College.
- The tenant will be responsible for turning gas service on. All requests for gas service should be directed to Eversource at (800) 688-6160. The Rental Property Department will be responsible for turning gas service off.
- Telephone service is available from Verizon at (800) 870-9999.
- Cable service is available from Comcast at (800) 934-6489.

If in doubt about arranging for utilities, inquiries should be made to the Rental Property Department at RHD@amherst.edu.

#### **FUEL**

Residents of College houses requiring gas as a heating fuel should contact Eversource at (800) 688-6160 to make necessary arrangements.

In those cases where the resident is responsible for the fuel oil, they may choose any fuel company to have service set up as an on call account or automatic fill account. The Rental Property Department strongly recommends that you set your account up as an automatic fill. Here are some local companies to contact.

South Hadley Fuel 413-532-3500 Dead River Company 413-584-3500 Surner Heating 413-253-5999 National Heating 413-549-6011

#### **POLICE AND FIRE PROTECTION**

# **POLICE**

The South Hadley Police Station is located at 41 Bridge Street. The phone number is: (413) 538 8231. The Mount Holyoke College Campus Police can be reached at (413) 538-2304.

# **FIRE**

The South Hadley Fire Department's telephone number is (413) 533-4010. To report a fire, dial 911. (If you are in a campus building dial 1-911.)

The Rental Housing Department will supply, install and replace battery-operated smoke and CO detectors in all units. Additionally, the Rental Housing Department will test the CO and smoke detectors and replace batteries annually. If either alarm (CO or smoke) is "beeping" (but not going off), please notify the Rental Housing Department immediately.

# **MAINTENANCE SERVICES**

• In case of emergency, the Rental Property Department reserves the right to enter the premises and make necessary repairs without notice.

# **KEYS**

Keys may be obtained from the lock box located at the rental property at the time of occupancy. The Rental Housing Department will provide the code to access your keys prior to your move in. Duplicate keys will be made on request and must be returned upon vacating. For emergency access see EMERGENCY SERVICE & LOCKOUTS section.

There will be a \$50.00 (fifty dollar) charge associated with any lost key replacement and new lock requests.

# **TRASH**

The Rental Housing Department provides trash and recycling containers for all the units. The town of South Hadley provides trash and recycling pickup for all rental housing. The town has adopted a "green bags" program, which requires all trash to be placed in special Town of South Hadley "green bags". Residents can obtain updated information, including pick up schedules and curbside collection at <a href="http://www.southhadley.org/Pages/SouthHadleyMA\_DPW/waste/recycling">http://www.southhadley.org/Pages/SouthHadleyMA\_DPW/waste/recycling</a>. Tenants are responsible for moving their trash and recycling containers to the curb on trash pickup day.

If a tenant misses the scheduled trash pickup day, they must wait until the next scheduled pickup day.

### **PARKING**

Off-street parking is available at most locations. The town does not permit overnight parking on the streets during winter months or parking at any time on Route 116 (College Street/Woodbridge Street).

The College Parking Rules and Regulations apply to vehicles parked at rental housing units. Vehicles parked on the street or in spaces adjacent to the house must be registered with the College Parking Office (<a href="https://www.mtholyoke.edu/parking">https://www.mtholyoke.edu/parking</a>, (413) 538-2514). Unregistered vehicles will be ticketed. Residents may not block access to garages or roadways at their houses. The College reserves the right to remove vehicles that hinder access to College property or block fire lane access to the College property.

Students are not allowed to park in rental housing parking spaces, including driveways, under any circumstances. Each rental housing unit has authorized parking for one vehicle. If you have multiple vehicles, you must contact the Parking Office to make alternative arrangements.

Questions about parking should be addressed to the Parking Office Monday-Friday 8:30am-4:00pm at 538-2514.

#### **STORAGE**

Storage areas are provided in the basements of most apartment buildings. These areas are marked. All items in storage must be labeled with the tenant's name. Unmarked items risk being discarded during the yearly cleanup. Personal property left outside the storage area or in the hallways may be removed and disposed of without notice if it presents a fire hazard. Public areas should be kept clear at all times.

Mount Holyoke College assumes no responsibility for the personal property of tenants. Any property left behind after the tenant vacates will be immediately disposed of at the tenant's expense.

#### **BASEMENTS**

It is important that maintenance personnel have access to basement areas at all times in order to properly service your unit. Only locks installed by the College should be on basement doors. Basement doors must not be locked from the inside or obstructed in any way that would prevent the Rental Property Department from entering the basement.

# **PETS**

Contact the Rental Property Department for information.

#### **BUILDING/MAINTENANCE INFORMATION**

### **EXTERMINATION**

Extermination includes the elimination of harborage places of insects and rodents, by removing or making inaccessible materials that may serve as their food or breeding ground, by poisoning, spraying, fumigating, trapping or by any other recognized and legal pest elimination method.

The Rental Housing Department is responsible for pest control. However, residents are expected to make a reasonable effort to eliminate the source of the infestation.

### **ROUTINE REPAIRS AND SERVICE**

The Rental Property Department is responsible for normal maintenance of College properties. The tenant is responsible for reimbursing the College for the expense of repair and replacement to College property resulting from damage or loss caused by negligence of the tenant or by anyone for whom the tenant is responsible. All requests for repairs and maintenance, **including emergencies during office hours**, should be submitted via the resident portal at <a href="https://www.amherst.edu/~rhd">www.amherst.edu/~rhd</a>. Our office hours are from 8:30 AM to 4:00 PM Monday through Friday. Work requests will be addressed on a priority basis. Please refrain from making requests directly to our repairmen unless it is an emergency.

# **EMERGENCY REPAIRS AND SERVICE AFTER OFFICE HOURS**

A maintenance emergency is defined as a situation that effectively reduces the tenant's ability to be housed in their apartment or home. These may include the interruption of heat, water (or hot water), and electricity, broken water lines and blocked toilets (for units with only one toilet).

For all maintenance emergencies occurring **after normal office hours**, please call the Rental Housing Department at (413) 542-8506 and follow the prompts. We have 24-hour phone coverage and our answering service will take the information regarding your call and will contact the appropriate personnel who will respond to your emergency. Please remain near the phone as the service personnel may require additional information to properly respond to your call, or may have to bring specific equipment or request assistance from others within the Rental Housing Department.

For fire and CO alarms or other police emergencies call 911 immediately. If either alarm (CO or smoke) is "beeping", please notify the Rental Housing Department by submitting a online request during office hours via the resident portal: <a href="https://www.amherst.edu/~rhd">www.amherst.edu/~rhd</a> or by calling the emergency line after office hours.

# **LOCKOUTS**

Should you be locked out of your unit during office hours, you may call the Rental Housing Department to let you in from 8:30 AM to 4:00 PM Monday through Friday.

If a tenant locks themselves out after the posted business hours, there will be a lock out charge of \$200.00 for a person to respond, plus the appropriate key replacement charges, if your keys are not found for any reason. Please bear in mind that there is most likely going to be a wait for someone to respond to any lockout call during or after business hours. Please note, the Rental Housing Department will not let your guests or friends into your apartment.

### **ACCESS**

In case of emergency, the College reserves the right to enter the premises and make necessary repairs without prior notice. Tenants will be informed either in writing or by phone that such action was taken, when and why.

# **MAJOR REPAIRS AND RENOVATION**

Repairs or improvements of a major nature should be requested in writing to the Rental Property Department or at <a href="mailto:rhd@amherst.edu">rhd@amherst.edu</a>.

Major building repairs or renovations are addressed by the Rental Property Department through a capital improvement plan and are based on building needs in relationship to the entire rental housing stock at the College. Tenants are encouraged to inform the Rental Office concerning such repairs or improvements so items can be assessed and prioritized.

#### PAINTING, REDECORATING AND MODIFICATIONS

The Rental Property Department cleans the rental units and makes them presentable for all new tenants. Unfinished basements will be broom swept during the turnover process. The Rental Property Department will not redecorate rooms that are in good condition for new tenants. Tenants are not permitted to paint or wallpaper College property. When painting or wallpapering is necessary, the Rental Property Department will select the colors and materials. The Rental Property Department does the maintenance of floors between occupants. Due to the extreme difficulty of doing this work while the unit is occupied, floor refinishing, extensive interior painting or remodeling and wallpapering will not be done while the apartment is occupied.

Residents are not permitted to install or build any exterior structure without the approval from the Rental Housing Department. Such structures include but are not limited to tree houses, children's swing sets and/or playhouses, gardens, storage areas and chicken coops. In addition, Residents are not permitted to modify any porch areas with screens, etc. All modification(s) and addition(s) must be approved by the Rental Housing Department prior to installation and the Resident is responsible for the removal of such structure(s) upon move out.

# **GROUNDS**

The Rental Property Department provides grass-cutting services. However, tenants may do routine cleanup of the grounds, including sweeping and raking.

The Rental Property Department provides snow removal from driveways at all rental housing units. The Rental Property Department will also provide snow removal from sidewalks, stairs, fire escapes, trash collection areas, etc, for multi-family properties. Tenants are responsible for snow removal from sidewalks, public walks, stairs, porches, basement hatchways, utility meters, etc. The Rental Property Department will supply and re-fill sand buckets at all multi-family buildings throughout the snow season. Any tenant of a single unit with special needs (for example, a documented handicap or condition that

would make shoveling impossible or dangerous) should contact the Rental Property Department at RHD@amherst.edu and they will be accommodated.

The College is working towards historical authenticity of color schemes and planting plans. Therefore, installation of gardens, shrubbery, fencing, outdoor fireplaces, TV antenna/cable TV, etc., or the removal of such facilities should be undertaken only with the written approval of the Rental Property Department. In addition, Residents are not permitted to install or build any exterior structure without the approval from the Rental Housing Department. Such structures include but are not limited to tree houses, children's swing sets and/or playhouses, gardens, storage areas and chicken coops. Residents are not permitted to modify any porch areas with screens, etc. All modification(s) and addition(s) must be approved by the Rental Housing Department prior to installation and the Resident is responsible for the removal of such structure(s) upon move out.

# **SPECIAL WINTER INFORMATION**

In order to conserve energy and to minimize freeze-ups and the resulting damage to College and personal property, you must take the following steps if you plan to be away for more than two days during the winter months (particularly during the Holiday Recess and January Term):

- 1. Close storm windows completely (outside window all the way up and inside window all the way down).
- 2. Close all outside doors tightly.
- 3. Keep doors between rooms open (particularly between bathrooms, kitchen and adjacent rooms).
- 4. Open all radiator valves all the way (fully counter-clockwise).
- 5. Shut off outside water faucets and disconnect hoses.
- <u>6.</u> Set thermostat back (but not below 60°F).
- 7. Check level of oil in oil tank. Be sure there is plenty of oil in tank or set account to be on automatic fill.
- 8. Do NOT shut off oil burner switch.
- 9. If you have a washer & dryer and live in a single-family home, turn the water valves off that allow the water to run into your washing machine.
- 10. Notify the Rental Property Department when you leave and give the date you are expected to return. Depending on the circumstances, the Rental Property Department may decide to install a low-temperature alarm during your absence. Failure to properly notify the Rental Property Department may result in freeze-up damages for which the tenant will be responsible.
- 11. Residents should check Mount Holyoke Announce or call Public Safety at 538-2304, in the event of an approaching storm, to check for a Snow Parking Ban.
- 12. Residents going out of the area during the winter snow season should check with the Parking Office to avoid ticketing or towing.

#### **OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION**

# **BASEMENT/FLOODING**

The potential is always present for a heavy rain or above average snowfall, which can cause flooding of basements. Most college houses have stone foundations, which are porous and damp. Even basements that have never had flooding in the past may experience flooding as a home ages or ground water conditions change. The Rental Property Department is not responsible for any loss or damage to the tenants' personal property which is stored in the basement

The Rental Property Department recommends that all residents do the following:

- Refrain from storing any valuables items in the basement.
- Purchase renters insurance to cover any personal property loss due to flooding.
- Store any items in the basement approximately 6 inches off the floor.

Residents should notify the Rental Property Department when flooding occurs. We will respond to assess the cause of the flooding and take action as appropriate.

# **TENANT RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREMISES**

- 1. Window cleaning is the responsibility of the tenant as is the general care and cleaning of the rental unit itself.
- 2. Lamps or bulbs are the responsibility of the tenant.
- 3. No large holes should be put into walls or ceilings of the rental units.
- 4. The installation of additional phone or cable TV lines is the responsibility of the Resident. Additionally, Residents are allowed to install a satellite dish, provided the dish is located on a balcony, railing, terrace, yard, patio or garden that is totally within the exclusive use and control of the resident. Residents are prohibited from placing a dish on outside or exterior walls, roofs, window sills or common-use balconies or stairwells. No part of the dish or antenna can extend beyond the balcony railing line of the person's apartment. Additionally, Resident cannot drill holes in outside or inside walls, floors, roofs, windows or balcony railings to install the dish or run wiring, and is responsible for any damages resulting from the installation of the dish and/or wiring. Residents must obtain prior authorization from the Rental Housing Department before proceeding with the installation.
- 5. Please notify the Rental Property Department prior to the installation of an air conditioner, as branch circuits in many older units are inadequate to handle the electrical load of a large air conditioner. The Rental Property Department does not install air conditioners for tenants.
- 6. If the tenant has a working fireplace and/or wood stove, they should have the chimney inspected and cleaned each year by an outside contractor. An active fireplace chimney is cleaned and inspected by the Rental Property Department only when the resident initially moves into housing. The Rental Property Department inspects and cleans only the chimneys used by the primary heating system and only as often as is necessary.

# **COLLEGE RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREMISES**

1. The Rental Property Department will check and clean, if necessary, all chimneys that service the primary heating equipment for the building.

- 2. The Rental Property Department will inspect, service, tune and clean all boilers and furnaces on rental property. The Rental Property Department will inspect and clean all roof gutters and associated down spouts on rental property as required.
- 3. The Rental Property Department will regularly inspect and clean ductwork and replace the furnace air filters.
- 4. The Rental Property Department is not permitted to lend out tools to residents.

# **SAFETY RECOMMENDATIONS**

For disturbance or other related security issues please call Mount Holyoke College Public Safety at 538-2304. For fires or other police emergencies call **911** immediately.

- 4. In the event of an alarm in a smoke or carbon monoxide detector NOTIFY THE SOUTH HADLEY FIRE DEPARTMENT IMMEDIATELY BY CALLING 911. <u>DO NOT CALL</u> the Rental Property Department. Our staff are not trained to fight fires nor equipped to identify the source or levels of carbon monoxide.
- 5. Tenants should purchase fire extinguishers and place in an easily accessible location.
- 6. Tenants should become familiar with the primary escape routes from the building and establish a meeting place outside the home.
- 7. Keep a list of emergency phone numbers adjacent to the telephone.
- 8. Check all window and door locks to ensure that they operate properly.
- 9. Properly store any hazardous chemical such as paint thinner, gasoline, oil, etc.
- 10. Tenants should take reasonable care to prevent pests or rodents from gaining access to buildings.

# **VACATING COLLEGE RESIDENCE**

All leases terminate on June 30 of the current fiscal year. Tenants whose appointments at Mount Holyoke College terminate at the end of an academic year must vacate the premises by no later than June 30 of that year. NOTE: There will be no proration of rent if the tenant vacates College housing prior to the termination of the lease. Tenants who decide to vacate the premises prior to June 30 will be responsible for rental payments through June 30, except when moving to another College-owned unit or when purchasing a house (tenant would have to provide a copy of a Purchase and Sale Agreement, signed by both parties and indicating the scheduled closing date relevant to the month in which the tenant wishes to vacate their unit).

#### **MOVING DATE**

The departing tenant must notify the Rental Property Department of their date of departure at least thirty (30) days in advance.

# **UTILITIES**

It is the responsibility of the vacating tenant to disconnect their telephone and cable TV. The vacating tenant should also contact SHELD and Eversource (if applicable) to transfer the service back into the College's name.

# **CLEANING - FINAL CHECK LIST**

A move out form will be provided by the Rental Property Department approximately 30 days before move out.

- 1. All appliances should be left in as good a condition as they were in upon arrival.
- 2. Stove burners and ovens should be left clean for the next tenant.
- 3. All materials should be cleared from closets, cupboards, and storage areas.
- 4. All trash should be removed from the attic, basement, storage areas, and living areas. All areas of the apartment or house should be left broom clean. (Furniture movers are not responsible for cleaning out trash.)
- 5. The lavatory and bathroom fixtures should be left clean for the next tenant.
- 6. All windows and doors should be closed and locked.
- 7. Keys must be returned to the Rental Property Department. There is a drop off box located at 1 Park Street in South Hadley
- 8. Forwarding address cards should be filed with the College Post Office.

# **INSPECTION**

It is customary for a representative of the Rental Property Department to inspect the premises upon the departure of the tenant. If the inspection reveals damage or excessive trash or if substantial cleaning is involved, in accordance with the lease agreement, the College will bill the tenant the amount necessary to cover the costs of repair and/or cleaning.